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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY |

1

Cooper Nuclear Station j
NRC Inspection Report 50-298/97-03

|
l
J

Operations

i
Operations showed a strong emphasis on safety. Changes to control room j*

administrative processes appeared to be initiating more rigor in the control of
activities. Coaching and counseling by licensee supervision and management
emphasized rigor in control room activities (Section 01.1).

Control room briefings were generally good. The shift supervisor took initiative to*

slow down the shutdown schedule to control crew workload during the first half of
the shutdown for the refueling outage. The latter portion of shutdown was well
controlled with the control room crew staffed with extra operators. The failure of
the startup feedwater controller was appropriate'ly handled by the operators
(Section 01.2).

,

Licensee activities demonstrated an emphasis on outage safety. Briefings by*

licensee management included specific examples of lessons learned. The plant-wide
standdowns which were conducted to address cases where performance was less
than expected were noteworthy (Section 01.3).

The licensee removed and left removed a steam tunnel cooling fan guard without*

evaluation of the change of configuration. Although this was considered an isolated
occurrence and was of minimal significance, it was an example of less than
systematic decision making in an emergent situation (Section 04.1).

Corrective actions for the violations involving procedure use and adequacy have*

been less than fully effective. A significant fraction of licensee initiated problem
identification reports show a continuing problem. The licensee has established
procedure adequacy and adherence as a site alignment issue (Sections 08.2
and 08.3).

Maintenance

Maintenance technicians did not stop and resolve inconsistent gasket installation*

procedure instructions. The gasket was properly installed but the procedure
concern was not addressed until questioned by inspectors. Maintenance
management had not effectively re-enforced appropriate expectations to stop work
and resolve procedural concerns (Section M1.1).

Work completion and troubleshooting activities were not well documented for*

source range monitor replacement. Licensee management appropriately addressed
the issue (Section M3.1).
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The licensee performed a strong, self-critical quality assurance audit of maintenance*

training certification. Long-standing performance issues in this area had not been
completely resolved. The licensee was implementing action to correct the audit
results (Section M7.1).

Enaineerina

in the area of configuration control, the licensee had not effectively used all self-e

assessment performar:ce insights, The licensee plans to review the documents for
any additional corrective actions (Section E8.1).

Licensee corrective actions to address containment penetration testing deficiencies*

were comprehensive and the licensee has established a credible testing program.
The licensee had not effectively used or maintained an Appendix J testing basis
document as indicated in their response to the violation (Section E8.4).'

Plant Support

On two occasions, inspectors identified that camera views used for a fire watch did*

not adequately observe the affected area as required by procedures. Additionally,
the licensee identified the presence of and the need to remove combustibles from
the hot work area. Initialimmediate actions by the licensee did not correct the

,

Iconditions, and hot work resumed without compliance with procedures
(Section F4.1). ;

1
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Report Details

Summary of Plant Status

The unit began this inspection period at 100 percent power. On March 21,1997,
Feedwater Drain Control Valve A4 failed. The feedwater heater was isolated, resulting in
reduction in feedwater temperature by 6 degrees. The licensee reduced power to
92 percent to accommodate reduced feedwater temperature with respect to reload
analysis. The plant operated at 92 percent to the end of its fuel cycle. The licensee
performed an orderly shutdown on March 28. During the remainder of the inspection
period, the plant continued shutdown and refueling operations.

1. Operations

01 Conduct of Operations

01.1 Imolementation of More Riaorous Standards in Control Room Activities
:

Insoection Scone (71707)a.

Inspectors observed operations activities and reviewed changes in operations
process controls for plant and control room activities,

b. Observations and Findinas

On March 17,1997, inspectors observed the implementation of a control room
night order process which required individual operator accountability for the night
orders. This was a more rigorous approach toward accountability for this
information by individual crew members,

inspectors observed good turnovers and awareness of plant conditions by control
room crew members. Additionally, all shift supervisors' briefings increased
emphasis on potential safety concerns regarding plant conditions and expected
activities. This occurred during routine daily and special activity briefings.

The licensee also initiated a practice of control room crew members requiring
repeat-backs from individuals outside the operations organization who interfaced
with the control room crew. This ensured more thorough understanding of issues
and concerns relayed to and from the control room crew.

Inspectors observed examples of operations rejecting work requests. One example
was rejection of rod control system work, based on potential impact during power
operation. Other examples were multiple refusals by control room staff to accept
inadequate problem resolutions. Examples included a fire pump minimum flow line
problem and corrective maintenance repairs to Secondary Containment Valve HV-
AOV-261 which f ailed numerous past surveillance tests.
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Inspectors observed examples when the licensee maragement and supervision
emphasized to the operating crews expectations for rigorous and safety conscious
performance.

c. . Conclusions

Operations showed a strong emphasis on safety. Changes to control room
administrative processes appeared to be initiating more rigor in the control of
activities. Coaching and counseling by licensee supervision and management
emphasized rigor in control room activities.

01.2 Observation of Plant Shutdown

a. Insocction Scope (7170Z1

The inspectors attended the briefing and observed the control room crew during the
plant shutdown for the scheduled refueling outage.

b. Observations and Findinas

On March 28,1997, the inspectors attended a briefing for plant shutdown for
refueling. The control room briefing was attended by the operations supervisor,
crew, and support departments. The briefing covered revised procedures and
additional expected plant responses. Also, potential failures and operator
contingency actions were discussed. At the end of the briefing, the inspectors
noted that the last refueling r.hutdown had resulted in level control problems, which
had not been discussed. The licensee then discussed this issue.

The inspectors noted that only the reactor scram portion of the procedure was
considered an infrequently performed evolution and therefore subject to
Procedure 2.0.1.1, " Conduct of infrequently Performed Tests or Evolutions,"
Revision 3, rather then the entire shutdown process. The licensee stated this would
tea re evaluated.

The inspectors observed the control room crew during the shutdown. The
shutdown was well controlled. The plant manager, operations manager, and
operations supervisor were frequently observed in the control room monitoring plant
activities.

During the first part of power descent, operations crew work load was high. The
shift supervisor slowed the rate of activities to minimize schedule pressure on the
crew. As a result, actions were completed without incident. During the latter part
of the shutdown, the control room crew was staffed with extra operators to
address the higher workload. Good control and command was observed even with
the extra operators present.
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The control room communications between crew members were adequate.
However, communications did not meet the licensee's expectation for 3-way
communication. The inspectors did not identify any performance issues based on
communication problems during the shutdown.

One challenge to operators was observed. The startup feedwater controller did not
work in the automatic position. The operator was required to manually control
reactor water level. Reactor water level decreased tc about 12.5 inches. The
automatic scram occurs at about 4.5 inches. Inspectors noted that plant conditions
and operator responses were not debriefed with the crew.

Control room briefings were held prior to beginning the reactor shutdown and cool
down. These briefings covered the expected plant response and contingency plans
for unexpected plant response.

c. Conclusions

The control room briefings were generally good. The shift supervisor took initiative
to slow down the shutdown schedule to control crew workload during the first half
of the shutdown. The latter portion of shutdown was well controlled with the
control room crew staffed with extra operators. The failure of the startup
feedwater controller was appropriately handled by the operators.

01.3 &nanement Briefinas and Standdowns to Address Outaae Work Precursors .

|
'

a. Inspection Scope (71707)
J

Inspectors observed licensee actions to provide plant safety expectations to outage
workers,

b. Observations and Findinas

On 15 occasions, inspectors observed routine briefings during which licensee
management emphasized strong expectations for proper work practices, awareness
of plant safety conditions, and proper implementation of procedures. Licensee
management noted several examples of both poor and strong work activities and
emphasized recent quality assurance findings. Ownership of issues, foreign material
exclusion, procedural adherence, and plant safety were also emphasized.

On two occasions near the beginning of the outage, inspectors observed the
licensee perform work standdowns for both plant employees and outage workers
when instances of poor work practices were observed, or performance was less
than expected. The licensee implemented one of the standdowns for 3 days. At
the conclusion of the standdown, workers were required to demonstrate knowledge
of safety and procedure requirements.
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c. Conclusions )

Licensee activities demonstrated an emphasis on outage safety. Briefings by
licensee management included specific examples of lessons learned. The plant-wide
standdowns which were conducted to address cases in which performance was
less than expected were noteworthy.

02 Operational Status of Facilities and Equipment

02.1 Loss of Feedwater Heater

a. Inspection Scooe (71707)

Inspectors reviewed licensee actions to address a loss of feedwater heating
transient. Inspectors evaluated coordination between operations and engineering,

b. Observations and Findinas

On March 14,1997, the feedwater Heater A4 drain control valve failed. The
operators responded in accordance with procedures. Engineering support was
requested to evaluate the cause of the failure and the acceptability of plant
operation at reduced feedwater temperature. Engineering and operations
troubleshooting activities found that the drain valve had swa.uted from its disc.

iPlant operation with feedwater Heater A4 isolated resulted in a 6 degree drop in,

feedwater temperature. Engineering identified that the most recent core reload i
'

analysis had not addressed steady state operation at less than normal feedwater
temperature. Procedure 2.4.9.4.7 " Loss of Feedwater Heating," Revision 10.1c1, ;

allowed operation with up to two feedwater heaters isolated.

The vendor provided a transient analysis which concluded that 100 degree reduced
feedwater heating was acceptable during a transient. Based on this analysis, the ,

Ilicensee concluded that steady-state plant operation at up to 60 degrees reduced
feedwater heating was acceptable. Operators were instructed by night orders to
scram the plant if a transient resulted in greater than 40 degrees further feedwater
heating reduction.

The licensee also identified that the most recent reioad analysis had not re-
evaluated operation with one safety-relief valve inoperable. However, this condition
was allowed by Technical Specifications. As interim corrective action, the licensee
issued a night order which stated that operation of the piant was not allowed with
one safety-relief valve inoperable. During the inspection period, all safety relief
valves were operable.

On March 17, the inspectors observed licensee discussion of the feedwater heating
event and subsequent findings. Licensee management emphasized the need to
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identify and bound all affected accident and transient procedures which may not
have been evaluated with respect to the reload analysis. Licensee management
indicated a strong questioning attitude, emphasizing the safety significance of these
concerns. The technical activities had been strong, indicating a questioning attitude
by engineering.

The translation of core reload analysis restrictions into plant operating procedures
and the completeness of the core reload analysis is an unresolved item pending
completion of the licensee's evaluation and additional NRC review (298/97003-01).

c. Conclusions

immediate actions in response to loss of a feedwater heater by operations were
strong. Overall coordination between operations and engineering to evaluate the
condition was strong. Plant procedures were identified which contained operating
instructions which were not consistent with the most recent core reload analysis.
This is an unresolved item.

04 Operator Knowledge and Performance

04.1 Sleam Tunnel Coolino Fan Failure .

1

a. Insoection Scone (71707)
i

The inspectors reviewed the licensee's actions to repair a cooler fan located in the |
steam tunnel. |

b, Observations and Findinos |

On February 22,1997, the licensee repaired a nonessential cooling f an which had |
thrown a belt. The fan was located in the steam tunnel. During the maintenance,
the licensee determined that radiation exposure would be significantly reduced if the
fan guard was not re-installed, and it was left off. On February 24, the inspector
questioned the evaluation for the configuration change regarding the potential
effects of the fan failure on Class I components.

The inspector found that, although this job had high visibility in all discipline areas,
no one recognized the removal of the fan guard and leaving it off as a configuration
change. Leaving the guard off was discussed among the individuals at the plant
and the decision was made without considering it a configuration change. The
licensee initiated a problem identification report and considered the potential effects
of the configuration change. The licensee concluded that there were no adverse
effects.

The removal of the fan guard and leaving it off without an evaluation was a
violation of the requirements of 10 CFR 50.59, which requires that changes to the
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plant configuration be evaluated to ensure that an unreviewed safety question has
not occurred. This failure constitutes a violation of minor significance and is being

,

treated as a noncited violation, consistent with Section IV of the NRC Enforcement
j Policy (50-298/97003-02).

This issue is further discussed in Section E8.9 with respect to the corrective action
i

program for unauthorized design modifications. ;

.
'

c. Conclusion
|

l- )
The licensee removed and left removed a steam tunnel cooling fan guard without j

i evaluation of the change of configuration. This is an example of less than' ;

systematic decision making in an emergent situation. !

!
- 07 Quality Assurance in Operations |

,
.

"

07.1' Review of Third-Party Evaluation 'on Plant Operations .

:

a. Insoection Scoce (71707) |-

. ,

|The inspector reviewed a third-party assessment of Cooper Nuclear Station dated
' IOctober 1996.

4- b. Observations and Findinas ]
|

The inspector found that the evaluation findings and concerns were consistent with [,

i. . NRC assessments. No new issues were identified. i

!
; ' 07.2 Review of Third-Party Evaluation on Training

'

- a. Insoection Scooe (71707)
!

The inspector reviewed a third-party evaluation of the licensee's technical suppod ,

'
training programs.

b. _ Observations and Findinas ,
,

! The evaluation, dated March 5,1997, et ided that the licensee had sufficiently ;

addressed concerns identified in an earlier t duation. The inspectors noted that the
results of the evaluation were generally com ent with NRC assessments. No new

,

issues were identified. |
i

- 08 Miscellaneous Operations issues !
!

08.1 (Closed) LER 50-298/94-013: reactor scram and group isolations due to a leaking i.

solenoid valve in. the reference leg injection system of the' reactor vessel level ;
'

,

;

.|

w - - - - - eer -e e-a y W1 P- +' -M^



.

.

7-

instrumentation. Solenoid Valve NBI-SOV-SSV739 had experienced excessive wear
because of the differential pressure resulting from surveillance testing of Core Spray
Valve CS-MOV-MO268 with the reactor depressurized. The solenoid valve design
did not anticipate this operational condition. The licensee replaced Solenoid
Valve NBI-SOV-SSV739 and leak tested the redundant Solenoid Valve NBI-SOV-
SSV738. The licensee stated that the solenoid valves would be isolated from the
core spray system during shutdown conditions.

Inspectors verified that procedures required isolation of the valve during normal
reactor shutdown and return to service during normal startup. The core spray test
procedure changes to vent air and thus reduce pressure transients on the solenoid
were also verified.

The licensee also implemented new Procedures 14.4.3, "NBl Cold Reference Leg
3A Backfill with Reactor Vented," Revision 2, and 14.4.6, "NBI Cold Reference Leg
3B Backfill with Reactor Vented," Revision 1, which provided guidance to backfill
without air in-leakage.

The failure to provide an adequate valve design for the anticipated spectrum of
operational conditions to which the valve was exposed is a violation of
10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion lil, which requires, in part, that measures be
established for the selection and review of materials, parts, equipment, and
processes that are essential to the safety-related functions of the system. This
licensee-identified and corrected violation is being treated as a noncited violation,
consistent with Section Vll.81 of the NRC Enforcement Policy (50-298/97003-03).

08.2 (Closed) Violation 50-298/95008-01: failure to control records and failure to follow
procedures. This violation addressed examples where procedures were not
appropriate, procedures were not properly controlled, records were not properly
stored, and procedures were not fully implemented. During this inspection the
inspector reviewed the corrective actions described in the licensee's response to the j
violation. 1

One action to prevent recurrence of this violation was to implement the Phase 3
Performance improvement Plan. The applicable portions of this plan were |
completed, the last steps having completion dates at the end of 1996. The )
inspector found, however, that the rate of problem identification reports

'

documenting procedure problems over the last 8 months (July 1996 to February
1997) has continued at a relatively high rate. The average fraction of problem
identification reports over this period documenting procedure adequacy and

.

adherence concerns was 26 percent. I

Some of the same procedure problems which were examples in the 1995 violation
still appeared, including procedures not including requirements, use of incorrect
revisions, and procedures not being fully implemented. While these problem
identification reports show a good capability to identify these types of issues, they

1

|

|
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also illustrate less than fully effective corrective actions of the Phase 3 Performance
improvement Plan actions in this area. Inspectors did note that the licensee has |
established procedure adequacy and adherence as a site alignment issue, |

The above violation is closed. Performance in the area of procedure adherence and
adequacy is additionally addressed in the following section of this report.

08.3 (Closed) Violation 50-298/95017-02: inadequate procedures. This violation cited .
several examples of the failure to hava appropriate procedures. Inspectors reviewed .
the corrective actions described in the licensee's response to the. violation.

As an action to prevent recurrence, the licensee reviewed procedures to assure that I

. the proper level of detail was specified. The licensee documented that the review i

of maintenance procedures was completed on August 2,1996, and the review of ;
-

engineering procedures was completed on June 28,1996. Review of departmental
level procedures was not performed.

Inspectors found that the licensee was continuing to identify a relatively high . I

number of examples where procedures refHcted a lack of detail. In February 1997,
12 preb em identification reports documented procedures with a lack of detail. Two
of thess involved engineering procedures and three involved maintenance
proceduces.

,

These examples and the examples referenced in the preceding section demonstrate
that the corrective actions for the prior violations have been less than fully effective
and that continued licensee attention in the area of procedure use and adequacy is
warranted. The licensee's actions to address procedure performance will be
followed as an inspector followup item (50-298/97003-04).

II. Maintenance

M1 Conduct of Maintenance

M 1.1 Failure to Question inadeauste Procedure for Gasket Installation

a . Insoection Scooe (627071
f

~

The inspector observed gasket installation and piping reassembly on the service
j - water booster pump system.

b. Observations and F!ndinas
,

On February 26.1997, the inspector observed technicians installing a gasket on a
service water booster pump flange. The inspector observed that the procedure

,

_ _ . . . _ . _ _ , _ _ . _ _ _ _ . . _ _ _



_

o

|

.

-9-

1

Itorquing instructions directed anernating tightening of fasteners. However, the
procedure also indicated that the gasket compression was to be measured,
indicating that the fasteners should be tightened to maintain gasket crush consistent
around the flange.

Inspectors questioned the technicians at the beginning of the tightening sequence ;

when it appeared the instructions differed from the work which was required. '

Discussions with technicians indicated they understood the wording of the ;

instructions, but also understood the need to tighten the fasteners evenly. ;

Inspectors also questioned why the technicians had not stopped to obtain
clarification or correction when the procedure instructions did not match work. The
technicians stated that they were capable of following the letter of the procedure
and properly compressing the gasket. Technicians did not appear to understand the
need to question and resolve procedural concerns rather than continue through the
work. Also, the technicians did not report the inconsistent instructions to their |

supervisor or initiate a problem identification report until questioned by inspectors
several days later. The site expectation is that procedure problems be resolved I

when they are encountered.

c. Conclusions

The failure of technicians to stop and inform supervision when an inappropriate step
for gasket installation was encountered was a weakness. Maintenance
management had not effectively reenforced appropriate expectations to stop work
and resolve procedural concerns.

M2 Maintenance and Material Conditions of Facilities and Equipment

M 2.1 Valve Maintenance Causes Chios in Va yj Stem Ends and Foreian Material Concern

a. Inspection Scone (617261

Inspectors observed motor-operated valve and actuator conditions during
maintenance.

b. Observations and Findinas

On April 2 and 3,1997, inspectors observed two cases where the ends of valve
,

stems and edges of stem nuts were chipped. Valves REC-MOV-700 and j
CD-MOV-65 evidenced bright metal chipped va!ve stem ends and stem nut edges.
This concern appeared to have been caused by improper rigging of valves during
assembly or disassembly. i

Inspectors discussed the condition with the cognizant valve engineer. As of |
April 11, no problem identification report or licensee evaluation had addressed this j

i
,
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concern. After inspector questioning during the exit meeting, a problem
identification report was initiated on April 12. The safety significance and extent of
condition of these concerns, including teuc eal, procedural, and problem
identification and resolution concerns, will be an inspection followup item
(298/97003-05)

c. Conclusions:

Questionable conditions on two motor-operated valv s stems were not being pursued
by the licensee. Initiation of a problem identification report and evaluation did not
occur until questioned by the NRC.

M3 Maintenance Procedures and Documentation

M3.1 Maintenance Work Packaae Documentation Weakness

a. Insoection Scope (61726)

The inspectors observed portions of the work specified by Maintenance Work
Request 97-0242, " Source Range Monitor A Replacement." The inspectors also
reviewed the work package for completeness of instructions and documentation of
work performed.

b. Observations and Findinas

The inspectors noted that the work package specified Procedure 14.2.19,
"SRM/lRM Detector and Drive Tube Removal, installation, and Testing," Revision 5,
for the work to be accomplished. Due to problems with postinstallation testing, the
licensee initiated and documented work using multiple copies of Procedures 14.2.19
and 7.0.1.7, " Troubleshooting Plant Equipment," Revision 2C1.

Inspectors noted that night shift technicians had not documented the status of the i

work at the conclusion of the shift in the work package. The work, performed
under the multiple copies of the procedures, was documented on the individual
procedure copies. No record was made of the sequence in which the different
copies of the procedures were completed. Therefore, the progression through the
troubleshooting was not recorded in overall context of the work order process.
Additionally, not all documents, such as the problem identification report used to
report a test f ailure and a copy of Procedure 14.2.19, were included in the work
package. Following discussions with the maintenance personnel and supervisor, the
work documents were updated to show the current work status.

Licensee management stated that the failure to document the status of work in a
timely manner and include work documents in the work package did not meet
expectations. Licensee management discussed these issues with maintenance
personnel to reinforce work documentation expectations.
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c. Conclusions

Work completion and troubleshooting activities were not well documented for
source range monitor replacement. Licensee management appropriately addressed
the issue.

M7 Quality Assurance in Maintenance Activities

|
M7.1 Quality Assurance Audit of Maintenance Trainina

a. Insoection Scoce (67207)

The inspectcq mviewed a Coality Assutance audit concerning the certification of
maintenance crganization pe ;9nnel.

b. Observations and Findinas

The inspector reviewed Quality Assurance Evaluation OE9642. This evaluation
addressed the certification of maintenance personnel and the effectiveness nf
licensee corrective actions. The Quality Assurance audit found that the actions
taken to resolve the recurring issue of performance of a task for which no
certification existed were . ineffective. Evaluation CAQ96-1072 had previously
addressed 24 cases which were documented between August 1995 and June 1996
concerning individuals performing actions without proper certification, in several
cases, individuals were properly trained, but training was not properly documented.
No examples were documented where plant equipment was adversely affected as a
result of these concerns.

The evaluation recommended that attention be focused on the recurring issue of
personnel performing tasks for which they were neither certified nor trained; that
communications be improved between parties during problem resolution to ensure
pertinent information is shared; and that a systematic approach be applied to
problem resolution when the licensee's corrective action program is not directly
used to resolve problems.

The inspector noted that this evaluation addressed long-standing problems which
had not yet been fully resolved. The line organizatiun acknowledged the findings
and responded that all aspects of the training program were undergoing significant
improvement and that this area was included in those efforts.

c. Conclusions

The licensee performed a strong, self-critical quality assurance audit of maintenance
training certification. Long-standing performance issues in this area had not been
completely resolved. The licensee implemented actions to address the audit results.

- - - _ _ - _ _
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M8 Miscellaneous Maintenance issues (92902)

M8.1 LQlosed) Violation 50-298/95017-01: This violation cited examples of failure to
control foreign materialin accordance with procedures. Inspectors verified that the
corrective actions described in the response to the violation were implemerned.
While the licensee has rer ently identified some minor problems with foreign material I

exclusion controls, the fundamental problems appear to have been corrected.

111. Enaineerina

E2 Engineering Support of Facilities and Equipment

E2.1 Shutdown Marain Durina Refuelinn Ooerations

a. Inspection Scone (37551)

The inspectors reviewed the licensee's plans and precautions to ensure adequate
shutdown margin during refueling operations.

t

b. Observations and Findinasi

The inspectors reviewed the licensee's fuel moving plan and discussed with licensee
; engineering personnel the method used to ensure adequate shutdown margin. The

licensee planned to perform a fuel shuffle rather than a complete core offload. The
inspectors questioned if the fuel assemblies had the potential to be in configurations
which could reduce the shutdown margin below acceptable limits.

The 'icensee's actions to ensure that shutdown margin requirements will be met
included planc.ing the fuel moves using a computer program. The program has been
in use in the nuclear industry for a number of years. In addition to planning the
moves, the program, based on fuel bundle reactivity data, performed a shutdown
margin calculation for each move. The licensee then sent information to the fuel
vendor in order to check the shutdown margin for the indicated fuel moves. The
vendor did not note any problems.

The licensee also tested the computer generated fuel moving plan to ensure that the
planned fuellocations were appropriate regarding the available physical locations in
the spent fuel pool and core. Using a fuel tag board, the licensee simulated moving
the fuel assemblies within the core and between the fuel pool and the core. No
problems were notec with the planned fuel bundle locations.

c. Conclusions

The licensee's preparations for ensuring an adequate shutdown margin during
refueling addressed shutdown margin and fuellocation requirements.

!

|
|

|
.-
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E8 - Miscellaneous Engineering issues (92903)

E8.1 LQlosed) Violation 50-298/93202-21: failure to maintain configuration control. This
violation involved the bypassing of sngineering controls for three maintenance work
requests, such that plant configuration .vas threatened. Additionally, the design
configuration of the plant had been compromised by numerous discrepancies
involving small-bore pipe supports and repeated instances of failure to replace
thermalinsulation following maintenance.

As corrective action, the licensee inspected the three maintenance work items to
verify the integrity of the affected equipment. This effort did not identify any
material discrepancies. To prevent recurrences, the licensee implemented
procedural changes specifically dealing with the identified discrepancies. In
addition, the system engineer conducted walkdowns prior to startup from the 1993
refueling outage and an action plan was generated to repair discrepancies identified
with small-bore pipe supports and thermal insulation. The system engineer
walkdowns were made an ongoing, periodic effort as defined by Engineering
Department Instruction 91-03, " System Walkdown Checklist."

As a long-term corrective action response to the violation, the licensee stated that a
re-engineering study of the configuration control and design change process would
be conducted. The inspectors reviewed two studies that appeared to meet this
objective. One study entitled " Configuration Managernent Self Assessment," dated I

May 10,1996, was performed by a contractor. Several significant findings of this !
'assessment included:

Numerous instances in which plant documents were not consistent with the*

i plant and with each other. These deficiencies constituted a significant
3 impediment to the orderly execution of work and required significant

management attention to correct:

Material contiol posing a risk of unauthorized modification, including the*

potential use of unqualified materials for maintenance and modification
| projects; and,

Significant backlogs of work associated with past activities which could have*

an adverse effect on configuration conformance.
.

An earlier assessment had been performed by another contractor entitled
"Re-engineering Assessment of the Cooper Nuclear Station Modification Control
Program," dated April 25,1995. This assessment recommended changes in the.

methodologies used by Cooper to manage the configuration of the plant, by
,

comparing Cooper's current program against an idealized template.

Licensee personnel stated that these assessments had been used to develop actions
to improve the design change process. Only the 1996 study had been used to

t. - _._ _ _ . , . - _ . . -- , - . . , _
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address the configuration control process. Additional recommendations from the ,
,
' assessments were viewed as enhancements and were planned to be addressed at a

later date.- {,

: .

The licensee subsequently assembled the " Configuration Management Program
Integrated Enhancement Plan," Revision 0, dated September 10,1996. This plan ' ,

. - generally addressed the findings of the previous assessments, but did not address
; them explicitly.

"

The inspectors considered that the re-engineering assessment constituted, in effect,
an alternate approach to improve the configuration management process and that it
did not require any further specific action by the licensee. However, some
performance insights gained from the earlier configuration management self-
assessments had not been addressed by the licensee. Although the licensee's
Configuration Management Program Integrated Enhancement Plan would address ;

q

some of these issues, it was not possible to tell from the corrective action process 1

which items, and to what extent, were being addressed. The lack of actions to
address some of the performance insights from assessments of configuration I

"

'

j control was an example of weak corrective actions.
:

2 The inspectors reviewed the procedure changes and associated employee training
j conducted in response to the Notice. Inspectors also reviewed information related
j to the walkdowns performed to identify and correct pipe support and insulation

deficiencies. Because the specific, short term issues were satisfactorily addressed,
the inspectors considered this item to be closed.

E8.2 (Closed) Violation 50-298/94014-02: no redundant containment isolation barrier.
This violation involved the design of the primary containment penetration process

,

lines. Approximately 25 cnntainment penetrations had no redundant valve (i.e.,
,

; they were isolated by single manual valves). Most of these valves were vent, drain,
and test connections. Additionally, approximately 300 containment penetrations

,

had r,ot been designed, f abricated, or installed to the same standards as the primary

{ containment.
4

As corrective action, the licensee performed walkdowns of the primary containment
i configurations to identify additional discrepancies. The licensee indicated that every

penetration into the primary containment was physically examined during the
walkdowns. When discrepancies were identified, the licensee initiated design
changes to correct the configuration by providing the redundancy required by
10 CFR Part 50, Appendix A. Design Change 94-212 was initiated for this purpose
and included numerous supplements covering specific elements of the project. The
licensee stated that all discrepancies of this type had been discovered and corrected
by this process and that the current containment penetration design was correct.

The licensee also revised Procedure 2.02, " Operations Logs and Reports,"
Revision 28.2 C2, to address the continued maintenance of the penetration design.

.

+T-es TT y + w y w-v giw--- re g- w'7'w- ''Trs-



.

9

-15-

i

This procedure implemented a tagging system that clearly identified the primary
containment boundary. The licensee performed a document review to assess the
300 penetrations which were not designed to the proper specification (USAS B31.1,
instead of USAS B31.7) and to determine the components for which required
nondestructive examination was not performed. The licensee then performed the
necessary nondestructive examination processes, generally particle or magnetic
testing, on these components and, in the process, identified five welds which had
rejectable indications. The licensee repaired or replaced the defective welds. For
some piping segments, the licensee performed an engineering reconciliation
between USAS B31.1 and B31.7. This effort was contained within Design Change
94 212.

The inspectors reviewed portions of Design Change 94-212 and documentation
detailing the walkdown efforts undertaken to identify penetration discrepancies.
The inspectors also reviewed the changes made to Procedure 2.02,
Revision 28.2C2. Additionally, the inspectors discussed this issue with the
licensee. Based on the above, the inspectors considered that the licensee had taken
appropriate corrective actions for the violation.

E8.3 (Closed) inspection Followuo item 50 298/94014-03: operational failure of
Valve RHR-MOV-M0168. This item involved a failure of Valve RHR-MOV-MO168
(minimum flow valve for the Train B residual heat removal pump) to close during
operation on May 26,1994. This item was reviewed but left open in NRC
Inspection Report 50-298/95-13. The open concerns involved whether the torque
switch setting of the valve was adequate and whether the control logic was'

appropriate to the operation of the valve.
i

The licensee determined that the valve had failed to fully close because debris had
prevented the rotor contacts associated with the torque switch from making up.
After the valve had closed 97 percent, the torque switch bypass opened and the
torque switch, also open because of the debris, stopped valve motion. The pcaition
lights i".dicated that the valve was closed despite being 3 percent open. The
concern was whether the debris was actually the cause of the open torque switch
in lieu of a high torque demand caused by the dynamic conditions under which the
valve was operating. Another concern was whether the valve position anomaly
was of significance.

During this inspection, the inspectors reviewed a thrust calculation generated by the
licensee to show that the torque demand at the point the valve stopped could not
have been sufficier.t to cause the torque switch to open. Additionally, the
inspectors reviewed the control schematic to understand the valve position
indication logic. The inspectors concluded that the valve f ailure was most likely not
the result of an underset torque switch, because the thrust calculation indicated a
large thrust margin existed and because this event has not been repetitive (i.e., this
and other miniflow valves typically stroke under dynamic conditions of
approximately the same magnitude from stroke to stroke). Although the position
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indication anomaly still exists for this valve, the licensee decided not to change the
logic. The inspectors concluded that the problem was mainly one of inconvenience,
as no safety implications were associated with the failure of this valve to fully
close. In fact, the licensee had calculated that the injection flow from Residual Heat
Removal Pump B was sufficient, even with Valve RHR-MOV-MOl6B fully open. In
consideration of these facts, the inspectors concluded that the licensee had
adequately resolved this issue.-

E8.4 (Closed) Violations 50-298/9401404 and 50-298/94014-06: local leak rate tests
and failure to test pressure switches. These two violations were addressed
collectively because of similar subject material. The first violation involved the
failure to include 68 components, passing through 54 primary containment
penetrations, into a local leak rate testing program. These components had never
been tested. The second violation involved the failure to include 15 instrument .

pressure switches into a localleak rate test program. These switches had never
been tested. These violations constituted noncompliance with 10 CFR Part 50,
Appendix J.

The licensee conducted walkdowns of all primary containment penetrations to
comprehensively identify the scope of the Appendix J noncompliance. in this ,

process, the licensee identified all of the components referenced in the violations !

and other components that, by error, had similarly not been tested. For !
penetrations that had not been previously Type A, B, or C tested, the licensee |

performed as-found testing for those penetrations that were immediately testable.
For other penetrations, the licensee eithei modified the penetration and then
performed a test or the penetration was reviewed for exemption under the
Appendix J program. Although the initial as-found testing revealed some problems
with the leak rates, the totalleak rate from the primary containment was reduced to
less than the Technical Specification limit after modifications or maintenance were
performed on the degraded penetrations.

The licensee made design changes (DC 94-212) to various penetration connections,
including the addition of test connections, installation of welded caps on spare
penetrations, and complete redesign of some containment isolation barriers. For 1

penetrations that were determined to be impractical to local leak rate test, the ;

licensee obtained exemptions from the NRC.

To prevent future problems in this area, the licensee stated in the response to the
violation that an Appendix J testing basis document would be developed. This
document was to provide a readily available, controlled source of comprehensive
information to the Appendix J program owner to facilitate the correct disposition of
Appendix J issues in the future. During this inspection, the licensee informed the
inspector that the Appendix J testing document (CCFMD 2, Primary Containment
Testing Design Basis) had been temporarily recalled. This had occurred on
March 29,1996, as a result of NRC inspector identified errors in the document. As
of the date of this inspection, February 27,1997, no plans existed to reinstate the ;

I

I

I
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testing basis document. The licensee stated that, in lieu of the testing basis
document, Appendix J testing infermation was being stored primarily in two
documents, a primary containment design basis document and an Appendix J
program document.

The licerisee also stated that information on the testing basis document was
redundant to other controlled documents used for program information and would
involve unnecessary document maintenance efforts. The licensee also stated that
the controlled documents are actively used and have been discovered to be a more
appropriate resource for testing basis informatiori.

The inspectors bJefly reviewed these two documents along with various procedures
controlling the e opendix J testing program and concluded that the licensee had
established a credible testing progren. What was not clear, however, was whether
the existing program fully implemented the intent of the licensee's docketed
commitment (response to violation, dated March 16,1995) to develop ar.d maintain
an Appendix J testing basis document. This document was meant to simplify the
Appendix J testing process by drawing all pertinent information into a single
document to clearly define program responsibilities and accountabilities. This action
is inconsistent with a licensed commitment. The licensee placed on adm'nistrative.

hold a document that was part of the corrective actions delineated within the formal
response to this violation.

The inspectors reviewed portions of Design Change 94-212, documents detailing
the walkdown efforts conducted to identify testing discrepancies, the Primary
Containment Design Basis Document, and various procedures associated with the
Appendix J program. Based on this review and discussions with the licensee, the
inspectors considered the licensee's response to be sufficient to close these two ;

violations. The licensee had taken comprehensive efforts to identify all Appendix J l

testing discrepancies and had aggressively pursued corrective actions to test the
penetrations.

E8.5 (Closed) V!olation item 50-298/95001-02: engineering justification for design
change not listed. This violation involved two design control procedural violations,

Iin one case, the licensee had failed to properly annotate several drawing change
notices to discuss why the change was not the result of a modification. in the
other case, several calculations affected by a revision of another calculation were
not properly annotated as to whether they were changed, added, or deleted.

In response to the findings, the licensee reviewed past drawing changes, clarified
procedures, and issued a memorandum to the engineering supervisors to ensure
strict procedural compliance. The inspector noted, however, ' hat a major change j

had been made to the drawing control process, after the licensee's original response
to this violation, that should eliminate the possibility of this violation to recur.
Specifically, Procedure 3.7, " Drawing Change Notice," currently Revision 13, was
revised to eliminate the use of stand-alone (i.e., unassociated with a design j
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modification or engineering evaluation) design change notices. If a modification
package or engineering evaluation is not associated with a dawing change, the
procedure requires that a design change or engineering evaluation be generated.

Regarding the calculation reference problem, the licensee revised Procedure 3.4.7, ')
" Design Calculations," currently Revision 11, several times since the time of the ;

violation. The latest revision requires the preparer to complete a calculation cross- '

reference index form that includes a listing of pending changes to the design inputs
and additionally requires the preparer to verify that each design input is clearly
substantiated by a retrievable support document. The inspectors concluded that the '

"

new procedures should prevent recurrence of this event.

The inspectors concluded that the licensee had adequately addressed all relevant ,

'

aspects of this violation, including correction of the cited examples, review for and
ccrrection of similar examples, and process changes designed to preclude
recurrence.

E8.6 (Closed) Unresolved item 50-298/95001-03: Technical Specification testing
compliance requirements not met. This item involved an anomaly of the Cooper |
Nuclear Station's Technical Specifications that, when followed precisely, would
cause both trains of the emergency diesel generators (or other dual-train safety-
related equipment) to be inoperable at the same time. This situation developed
because the Technical Specifications require that during the test of one train, which
renders it inoperable, the other train must be demonstrated operable. If this
demonstration is done by testing, the other train would likewise be rendered
inoperable.

The licensee had originally intended to revise the Technical Specifications to correct
this problem, but decided to cancel this effort because of the adoption of improved
Technical Specifications, which would also correct the problem. In the interim, the
licensee had adopted an allowed outage time program to minimize the time during

,

j which essential equipment is out of service because of testing. At present, if one
i diesel generator is tested, the other diesel generator must be verified to be "not

inoperable." This effort does not require a physical test of this diesel generator.

| The licensee stated that the improved Technical Specifications are scheduled for
. submittal by April 1998. In the interim, the allowed outage time program will I

'

remain in effect. The inspector verified that the NRR staff has endorsed use of the
allowed outage time process. Accordingly, this unresolved item is closed.

E8.7 (Closed) Inspection Followuo item 50 298/95002-02: DC motor actuator update
lacking. This item was opened to track the licensee's response to what was then
thought to be an imminent transmittal by Limitorque, Inc. of information concerning

: the sizing of direct current motor-operated valves. Limitorque has since indicated
that this information is not ready for issuance on any foreseeable schedule. The

i
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licensee's vendor information program requires review of any new direct current
motor-operated valve sizing information; but, because of the lack of a schedule for
its issuance, this item will be closed.

E8.8 (Closed) Insoection Followun item 50 298/95013-02: licensee to review design
life. This item involved a concern that design engineering was not involved in
formulating design life expectations for essential, nonenvironmentally qualified
equipment for use in determining periodic replacement frequencies, instead,
maintenance was performing this function.

Sir ce the time of this inspection, the licensee made several procedural changes to
increase erigineering's role in providing input to the preventive maintenance process
(which includes periodic replacement of components) within the modification
program. However, at the time of this inspection, a significant change in this

'

process was taking place. In September 1996, the licensee established the
Maintenance Support Group, which is comprised of maintenance engineers. This
new group was developed principally as a focal point for implementation of the
Maintenance Rule. One of the duties of the Maintenance Support Group will be
ownership of the preventive maintenance program, which means that the
maintenance engineers will be responsible for determining replacement frequencies
for plant equipment. The licensee believed that well-trained maintenance engineers
would be better qualified to perform this function than design engineers. This group
was in a transitional phase at the time of this inspection, with 13 plant systems
currently transferred to their purview. Previously, the licensee did not include ,

staffing for maintenance engineers,
i

The inspectors determined that the licensee's use of maintenance engineers to
determine design life criteria was acceptable; therefore, the original concern was ;

resolved. |

I
E8.9 (Closed) Violation 50-298/96004-01: unauthorized modification to steam tunnel

blowout panel. A violation was identified in that the licensee had f ailed to recognize
a modification to the rnain steam tunnel blowout panels had raised the set pressure
of the panels significantly, resulting in an unreviewed safety question. The
modification was directed by a work order, without use of a configuration control
process.

1
'

Inspectors reviewed the licensee's corrective actions, which included the
identification of many additional unauthorized modifications to the plant. The
licensee had also revised design control and station modification procedures to
establish more rigorous processes to preclude further unauthorized design
modifications. Inspectors noted several occasions when work control actively
solicited design assistance to determine if work was an unauthorized modification to
the plant. 8ased on procedure review, design change review, and personnel
interviews, the design process control was improved and better aligned with I

i
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existing engineering and plant processes. Configuration control processes were also
corrected to provide control of the plant, as was the process for drawing revisions.

Inspectors reviewed several work orders to determine if the maintenance perforrvd
involved a change to the configuration. No configuration control issues were
identified. Additionally, inspectors reviewed a sample of past work orders to

,

,

evaluate the significance of configuration control issues which had been identified
and reviewed the adequacy of engineering review. No negative effects on the plant
function and safety systems were identified. An earlier NRC finding of unauthorized
modifications to the control room seismic monitor, to attach radio shelves and
power outlets, was evaluated. No safety significance was identified.

However, during this inspection period, inspectors identified a violation in which the
work control process failed to properly control the plant configuration
(Section 04.1). This involved a highly visible emergent repair and subsequent
change to a nonsafety-related fan cooler in the main steam tunnel. The fan cooler
guard was removed in accordance with a maintenance work order, without an
evaluation of the configuration change. No effects of the fan guard rem 0 val on
safety-related equipment in the main steam tunnel were evaluated. The failure to
consider the fan guard removal a modification, and to perform an engineering
evaluation, indicates that corrective actions for the original violation, although
substantial, did not preclude this occurrence. This occurrence, however, appears to
be isolated and therefore not representative of the scope and depth of corrective
actions. |

E8.101 Closed) Violation 50-298/96005-01: failure to perform operability assessment on
14 motor-operated valves. This violation involved the licensee's failure to formally ,

evaluate the operability of 14 motor-operated valves that were determined by a l

contractor to be potentially susceptible to pressure locking or thermal binding. The )
licensee denied the violation. By letter dated July 10,1996, the NRC informed the !

licensee that this violation had been withdrawn. Accordingly, this item has been j

closed.

E8.11 IQlosed) Inspection Followuo item 50-298/96006-01: engineering self-assessment
performance followup. 'lhis item involved the apparent lack of a formal system to I

ensure that the findings of a 1996 engineering self-assessment would be tracked to
ensure that they would be appropriately addressed from a corrective action
perspective.,

in reviewing this open item for closure, the inspectors focused on whether the
findings from the 1996 engineering self-assessment were being formally tracked
and whether the licensee had procedurally established a process by which the
findings of future assessments would be addressed. The licensee provided a listing
of problem identification reports and a printout of the internal management tracking

.
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system (NAITS) which collectively showed that the findings from the 1996
engineering self-assessment had been placed in a formal tracking system to ensure
the completion of proposed corrective actions.

Regarding the tracking of future self-assessment findings, the licensee indicated that
no requirements had been formulated to prescribe how findings from self-
assessments should be tracked. This process was handled informally at the
cognizance of the individual responsible manager, who could choose to use a
variety of mechanisms, such as the plant-wide NAITS, the department-specific
TITS, or an informal internal mechanism. The findings of self-assessments have

n addressed by Directive 25, "Self Assessment" Revision 0, dated April 1,u
1997. The directive Step 2.4.6 requires that the team shall initiate appropriate
corrective action program documents whenever issues are deterrnined to meet the
threshold for 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criteria XVI. Although tnis requirement
is redundant to existing licensee procedures, it emphasizes the requirement.

Directive 26 also states that department managers should develop performance
indicators and track and follow up improvement of the process, but does not require
that the process be formal.

The inspectors considered the lack of a controlled process to ensure that the
findings of self-assessments were appropriately addressed to be a concem.
Because the findings from the 1996 engineering self-assessment had been placed
into a tracking system, the current item is considered closed.

E8.12 (Closed) Insoection Followuo item 50-298196006-02: diesel generator upgrades.
This item identified that a modification to the diesel air start system may have
introduced a new failure mechanism that was not considered within the licensee's
design effort. The modification changed the diesel generators from an air-to-start to
an air-to-stop configuration, such that the active function required during the start
sequence was for the diesel generator's governor actuator to fuel rack pneumatic
linkage mechanism, known as a Bimba cylinder, to vent properly. The concern was
that the design change did appear to fully consider the possibility that the cylinder's
vent path may become blocked such that adequate venting would not occur. In this
case, the diesel generator would fail to start. This item also included the concern
that the venting operation of the Bimba cylinder was tested only once each refueling
outage, which may not be frequent enough to monitor the status of the venting
path.

The licensee developed justification for not taking further action. In this paper, the
licensee stated that the vent path, because of its particular geometry and location,
was not subject to foreign matter accidentally entering and blocking the vent tube.
The vent tubes are directed downward to preclude foreign material entry. To test
the vent path, it is necessary to perform an emergency start of the diesel generator
or to remove the corupononts, test, and reassemble, which would then require an
emergency start as a retest. The licensee discussed the parts of the system that
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must actively function to allow the system to start: (1) a shuttle valve, PY7, which
should already be in the proper starting position following the previous shutdown,
and (2) solenoid Valve 20FO-1, which opens to vent the air from the Bimba
cylinder. However, a redundant solenoid valve, USCV 9, is availab|e to vent the
cylinder if Valve 20FO-1 should fail. Based on the low probability of failure and a
desire to limit emergency diesel starts (carbon buildup, cylinder wear), the licensee
decided to maintain the current refueling cycle schedule for testing of the vent path.

The inspectors reviewed the licensee's justification and a schematic of the starting
logic and determined that, in the absence of evidence to suggest otherwise, the
licensee had satisfactorily justified its decision to take no action at this time.

E8.13 (Closed) Violation 50-298/96008-01: failure to electrically isolate Diesel
Generator 2 from fire. This violation cited a design control error that resulted in
Diesel Generator 2 being not protected from a control room fire. Modification 94-
263 was installed to address an unrelated fire control concern. The licensee's
design control process required that all affected control room drawings must be
annotated to indicate that a change had been made to the drawing. This
requirement did not exist for noncontrol room drawings. Modification 94-263 added
some jumpers and fuses to a portion of the control circuitry that was not included
on the control room drawings. A subsequent but contemporary design change
(Modification 94-302) also modified this same portion of the circuit but, not
realizing the changes caused by Modification 94-263, the engineer made a change
that, in combination with the change made on Modification 94-263, rendered the
diesel potentially inoperable in the event of a control room fire.

The licensee immediately corrected the control circuit discrepancy and performed a '

review that indicated that no other failure mechanisms (other than the control room
fire problem) had been introduced by this wiring discrepancy.

The licensee performed a hand-over-hand walkdown of the loads connected to the
applicable 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix R, fuses and found no additional
discrepancies. The licensee selected for review the drawings associated with 23
control room and auxiliary relay room panels, biasing the selection toward safety
significance, a high concentration of daisy chain configurations, and a large number
of modifications, allin an effort to determine if similar discrepancies involving
noncontrol room drawings had occurred. This review did not identify any
discrepancies cf the type associated in the violation.

To avoid similar problems in the future, the licensee's design control process has
eliminated the use of sketches and now requires that the drawing change notice be
marked up and used with the modification for implementation. The process also
requires the pre assigning of drawing change notice numbers as early as possible in
the modification development to facilitate tracking of drawings with pending
revisions.

1

i

i
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The inspectors discussed this issue with the licensee and reviewed Procedure 3.4.3,
" Design Change," Revision 12, and Procedure 3.7, " Drawing Change Notice,"
Revision 13, to verify that the process changes had been implemented. Based on
the extensive reviews for generic concerns, and the procedure changes that would
appear to eliminate the manner in which this violation occurred, the inspectors
concluded that the licensee had adequately addressed this violation.

E8.14 (Open) Inspection Followup Item 50-298/96010-01: design basis capability. This
item identified the need for the licensee to provide additional justification for the
valve f actors assigned to motor-operated valve Groups 2,3, and 8. The licensee
stated that testing of valves in these valve groups would be conducted during the
spring 1997 outage and that these test results would be used to validate or revise,
as necessary, the valve factors assigned to Groups 2,3, and 8. This item will
remain open pending NRC review of the additional test results.

IV. Plant Support

R1 Radiological Protection and Chemistry Controls

R 1.1 Pre-Outaae Radiation Protection Standdown

a. inspection Scope (71750)

Inspectors observed a radiation protection standdown.

b. Observations and Findinas
i

On March 31,1997, the licensee conducted a 2-hour radiation standdown to )
emphasize management expectations regarding instances of several precursor type
radiation protection occurrences. The licensee had noted severalinstances of
outage workers and radiation protection personnel implementing radiation protection
practices not consistent with expectations. The licensee did not identify safety
significant concerns. . Briefings emphasized the expectation that radiation protection '

procedures be precisely followed. No instances of contamination or unanticipated
.

Iexposure were noted.

c. Conclusions

The licensee took prompt action to address a low level of radiation protection
occurrences.

.
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~ F4 Fire Protection Staff Knowledge and Performance

.

F4.1 Failure of Fire Watch to Perform Acoropriate Observation~

,

; ' a. Insoection Scone f71750)
; i

inspectors observed fire protection activities associated with installation of a .i
modification. ;,

'
:

b. Observations and Findings*

-,

On March 6,1997, inspectors observed installation of Modification 94-072.
' . inspectors noted fire watch personnel observing welding and grinding activities by

remote television. The camera view covered about 10 square feet of floor area, .
;

which was less than half of the area over which sparks were spread. Inspectors '

questioned if this situation was consistent with Procedure 0.39, " Fire Watches,"' ,

; Revision 12, step 8.4.1, which required that "the fire wa'tch should observe the >

i affected areas for signs of smoke or fire." Licensee personnel initially responded
I that the radiation levels.in the area of work were high enough to justify use of

television cameras as opposed to physical location of fire watch personnel within
the area..

1

Af ter inspectors questioned this condition, camera angles were adjusted to |

L
incorporate a wider field of view, about 18 square feet. Sparks continued to travel
beyond camera view. The licensee fire protection engineer indicated that the area,.

; was not at risk because the floor was concrete, only minimal combustibles were
present, and all components were covered with fire retardant protective cloth.
Af terward, however, the licensee identified the presence of multiple bags of
combustibles in the area outside the view of the camera. A problem identification-

2' report was initiated. The licensee stopped work and planned to immediately remove
.

some combustibles and cover the remainder with fire retardant blankets. The hot*

work resumed after about 10 minutes without removal of the combustibbs,
| Approximately 50 minutes later, inspectors observed the continued generation of

' welding and grinding sparks in that area.;

Inspectors then questioned compliance with Procedure 0.39, Step 8.1.4, which
;4

specified that combustibles must be 35 feet from the affected area. The licensee
stopped work while the bags of combustibles were removed. Inspectors observed
that sparks were spread over an 8 foot radius from the work. The camera only
covered approximately 6 to 7 feet of the work area. The licensee subsequently'

,

installed a third camera and moved the second camera further back. This provided
1

. a significantly expanded field of view and encompassed the affected area,
i

The failure to follow Procedure 0.39, Steps 8.1.4 and 8.4.1, is a violation of
Technical Specification 6.3.2, which requires that procedures shall be implemented
for the fire protection program (50-298/97003-06).

:

I
_. _ .._ _ _ _ . _ _ _ . . .___ _ . -
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c. Conclusions

On two occasions, inspectors identified that camera views used for a fire watch ,

outside a radiation area did not adequately observe the affected area as required by
| procedures. Additionally, the licensee identified the presence of and the need to

.

remove combustibles from the hot work area.- Substantial inspector involvement
was required over a 50-minute period, since the initial action by the licensee did not'

correct the conditions, and hot work resumed without compliance with procedures. ;a

V. Manaaement Meetinos

X1 Exit Meeting Summary

The inspectors presented the inspection results to members of licensee management at the
' exit meeting on April 11,1997. The licensee acknowledged the findings presented.

I t

The inspectors asked the licensee whether any materials examined during the inspection !
'

should be considered proprietary. No proprietary information was identified. !,
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ATTACHMENT
,

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

PARTIAL LIST OF PERSONS CONTACTED
t

Licensag

Michael J. Bennett, Licensing Supervisor.
- Laurence M. Bergen, Senior Manager of Safety Assessment .

Douglas Billesbach, Work Control Manager -

Mike Boyce, Manager Engineering Special Projects
Jack Dillich, Maintenance Manager

_

Fadi Diya, Design Engineering Manager
Jerry Dorn, Containment Engineering Supervisor

. Philip Graham, Vice President-Nuclear Energy
Mike Hale, Radiation Protection Manager
Mike Peckham, Plant Manager ' !

Davitt Van DerKamp, Operations Supervisor
Chuck Walgren, Senior Quality Assurance Specialist '

UB.C

Elmo Collins, Chief, Project Branch C

INSPECTION PROCEDURES USED )
|

IP 37751: Onsite Engineering

IP 61726: Surveillance Observation,

4

IP 62707: Maintenance Observation

IP 71707: Plant Operations

IP 71750: Plant Support Activities |
1

IP 92901: Followup - Plant Operations
.

IP 92902: Followup - Maintenance-

IP 92903: Followup - Engineering-
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IP 92700: Onsite Followup of Written Reports of Nonroutine Events at Power Reactor
Facilities

IP 33702: Prompt Onsite Response to Events at Operating Power Reactors

ITEMS OPENED, OPENED AND CLOSED, CLOSED, AND DISCUSSED

Opened
]

298/97003-01 URI procedures allow operating not evaluated in the core reload
analysis (O2.1) ;

i

298/97003-04 IFl procedure use and adequacy (08.2 and 08.3)

298/97003-05 IFl chipped valve steam and nuts due to rigging (M2.1)
l>

298/97003-06 VIO failure of fire watch to observe area (F4.1) !

* Opened and Closed

298/97003-02 NCV failure to evaluate configuration change to steam tunnel fan
guard (04.1)

|
1298/97003-03 NCV reference leg backfill line valve inadequate (08.1)

Closed

298/94-013 LER Leaking reference leg injection valve (08.1)

298/95017-01 VIO Inadequate FME controls (M8.1)

298/95008-01 VIO failure to control records and failure to follow procedures
(08.2)

298/95017-02 VIO inadequate procedures (08.3)

298/93202-21 VIO Configuration control f ailures (E8.1)

298/94014-02 VIO No redundant containment isolation barrier (E8.2)

298/94014-03 IFl Failure of RHR-MOV-16B (E8.3)

,
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298/94014-04 VIO Inadequate local teak rate tests (E8.4)

298/94014-06 VIO Failure to test pressure switches (E8.4)

298/95001-02 VIO Engineering justification for design change not listed (E8.5)

298/95001-03 URI TS testing requirements not met (E8.6)

298/95002-02 IFl DC motor actuator update lacking (E8.7) ;

298/95013-02 IFl licensee to review design life (E8.8)

298/96004 01 VIO unauthorized modification to steam tunnel blowout panel
(E8.9)

298/96005-01 VIO failure to perform operability assessment on 14 motor operated
valves (E8.10)

|

298/96006-01 IFl engineering self assessment performance followup (E8.11)

298/96006-02 IFl diesel generator upgrades (E8.12)

298/96008-01 VIO f ailure to electrically isolate diesel generator 2 from fire (E8.13)

|

Discussed

298/96010-01 IFl design basis capability (E8.14) )
|

l


